	Addendum #1	
PLCB Expired Restaurant Liquor License Auction
		IFB #2601317

Questions Submitted by 12:00 p.m. on September 27, 2016

____________________________________________________________________________

Q1.	If I have a prohibited interlocking business interest (I own a beer distributor or importing distributor license) but I intend to assign the license to someone else who does not have a prohibited interlocking business interest and is of good repute, can I be selected if my bid is the highest?
 
A1.    No, individuals or entities having prohibited interlocking business interests or who are not of good repute are not eligible to participate in the auction.  Please carefully review the Bidder’s Representations and Warranties section of the IFB, noting also the bid surety forfeiture provisions.  You are encouraged to seek private counsel experienced in Pennsylvania liquor law to assist you.  See also A6 below. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q2.	How does one bid on an expired license? Can you please send me the necessary forms?  

A2.	The Invitation for Bid can be found at: http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/Solicitations.aspx?SID=260317.

	For the first auction, bidders will be required to submit their bid(s) by October 27, 2016 at noon.  Each bid package must include two items: a PLCB Bid Sheet for the particular license, properly signed and sealed, and a bid surety in the amount of $5,000.00.  Each sealed bid package must be contained in a sealed envelope, labeled on the outside with the IFB number, the auction number of the license, and the name of the person or entity bidding.  Detailed instructions regarding submitting a bid, bid package requirements, and PLCB Bid Sheets are included in the Bid Requirements section of the IFB.  Bid packages must be hand-carried or mailed to:

			PLCB Purchasing & Contract Administration Division
			Invitation for Bid #260317
			Northwest Office Building, Room 316
			Harrisburg, PA  17124-0001			
                                                                   

Q3.	Can one of the two licenses for Cameron County be used as a “Club Restaurant License?”
   
A3.	There is no “Club Restaurant” license.  A restaurant liquor license may be exchanged for a club liquor license; however, the licensee seeking the exchange of the license must qualify as a club, as defined in section 102 of the Liquor Code.  47 P.S. § 1-102.  If the purported use is that of a private dining club, that is also permissible with a restaurant liquor license. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q4.	Can you identify owner and address of establishment of the expired licenses that are up for auction in advance of the auction?

A4.	The expired licenses being auctioned are no longer owned as these licenses were non-renewed, revoked by an administrative law judge, or are no longer eligible for safekeeping.  
___________________________________________________________________________

Q5.	Does the $5,000.00 need to be a cashier’s check or can it be a personal or business check?  

A5.	Each bid must be accompanied by a Certified Check, Cashier’s Check, or Bid Bond as described in the Bid Surety section of the IFB.  Certified checks and cashier’s checks are generally available from banks and other financial institutions.  Bid bonds are generally obtained from licensed insurance underwriters.  Bidders are encouraged to consult with their private counsel and/or financial advisors.  Please note that Bid Bonds are not the same as Performance Bonds.  Performance Bonds are not required for this IFB.


Q6.	Would I be correct in assuming the surety will only be cashed if my bid is the winning bid?  

A6.	The bid surety of a selected Bidder will only be cashed if forfeited as liquidated damages due to the Bidder failing to comply with the terms of the IFB.  Failure to timely remit the full bid amount will result in forfeiture of the bid surety.  Failure to timely file a transfer application will result in forfeiture of the bid surety.  If a person or entity that would be precluded from acquiring a license due to prohibited interlocking business interests or due to not being of good repute, bids for a license and is selected, this will result in forfeiture of the bid surety.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q7.	The liquor licenses that are being offered can they be inspected to as what type of license they are (Amusement permit, Sunday Sales permit, any liens etc.)?  

A7.	The licenses being auctioned are expired restaurant licenses in cases where the licenses were either non-renewed, revoked by an administrative law judge, or are no longer eligible for safekeeping, as described in the Legal Specifications and Requirements section of the IFB.  

	Amusement permits, Sunday Sales permits, Extended Food Hours permits, and Tavern Gaming licenses are examples of additional privileges of a license, each of which must be requested by the individual or entity seeking a transfer.  

	As set forth in Act 39 of 2016 (“Act 39”), once a license has become available to be auctioned, it may no longer be subject to any unpaid fines, unserved suspensions, liens or judgments accrued by the previous license holder.  Therefore, all of the licenses being auctioned in this IFB # 260317 are clear of all such claims.  
____________________________________________________________________________

Q8.	Does the PLCB have any idea when the next auction after the first round will be?  Is there any idea of how many auctions will happen over the next year or so, and how many will be released?  

A8.	Acts 39 and 85 allow the PLCB to set the dates, times, and other conditions for the auctioning of licenses.  Auctions will occur on dates to be determined by the PLCB.  The PLCB will post notice of each auction, including a listing of all the licenses that are to be available for that auction, several weeks prior to the auction date.  Future auctions will have different numbers and may be conducted via a different method. 

Q8-a.  How many licenses would be auctioned at a time?  As many as are available, or fewer, and if so what is the thinking behind the limitation?
	
			A8-a.	   No decisions have been made about future auctions. 

Q8-b.   Also, would the auctions go to the highest bidder always?
			
A8-b.	 No decisions have been made about future auctions.



Q9.	Must a bidder for one of the expired restaurant liquor licenses have a location on which to activate the license at the time of submitting a bid?

A9.	No.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Q9-a.  If not, must the application for the license (which is to be submitted within 6 months of the auction award) include the location to activate the license or may the winning bidder elect to put the license in safekeeping, subject to the safekeeping rules and regulations?
			
		A9-a.	An application for transfer of the license must be filed within six months of the date of the Notice of Selection. This transfer application may be filed under prior approval, but there must be a proposed licensed premises at the time of filing.  See also A15 below.

Q9-b.  If the application must include a specific location, can it be anywhere in the county in which the license is available or are there limitations as to the municipality in which it may be placed?
			
A9-b.	If the license is to be transferred to a municipality other than its original municipality, any transfer applicant must first obtain approval from the receiving municipality if the receiving municipality is at or above quota.  Additionally, a license may not be transferred to a location that is “dry” for retail liquor licenses.   

Q9-c.  Will the applicant have to obtain the receiving municipality’s approval to locate the license in that municipality, much like moving a license from one municipality to another under the current procedures?
			
	A9-c.	Yes, if the license is going to a different municipality in the same county, which receiving municipality is at or above its municipal quota. 

Q9-d.  If the application for the license by the winning bidder cannot be to maintain the license in safekeeping, may the application be on a prior approval basis?  

		A9-d.  Yes.  

Q9-e.  Will the application for the license follow the same procedure as a double transfer (i.e., person-to-person and place-to-place transfer) of an existing license and, if not, what additional (or lesser) procedures will be required?

A9-e.   Yes, the license transfer procedure will follow the directives found in sections 403, 404, 461 and 468 of the Liquor Code.  
____________________________________________________________________________

Q10.	When I try and look up License Auction #7, Bucks County, Bristol Twp., on the PLCB website, the license number R-19232 does not register to any license.  Is this the correct license number? 

A10.  The licenses being auctioned in this first round are among the oldest licenses and therefore their expiration predated the current database implementation.  See also A7 above. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q11.	What are the guidelines around selling a license?  I went to the FAQ site here (http://www.lcb.state.pa.us/PLCB/Licensees/FAQs/) and see that, “In cases where a license is sold separately, the cost is usually higher than when a license and building are sold as a package”.  By that guideline, am I correct in assuming a license that I own can be readily sold to another individual/corporation?  Or are there restrictions around this? 

A11.  You are encouraged to seek private counsel experienced in Pennsylvania liquor law to assist you with your business plans.  By way of general information, sales of liquor licenses are private sales, and the PLCB is not involved in setting license prices.  There are restrictions on who may hold a liquor license, as specified in the Liquor Code. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q12.	When will a license from Lebanon County be auctioned? 

A12.	See A8 above. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q13.	If my liquor license (which was in safekeeping until it was no longer eligible) is going to be resurrected for auction, do I have a right to sell it? 

A13.  No.  Act 39 specifically and exclusively authorized the PLCB to auction expired licenses.  Prior holders of these licenses have no rights to the expired licenses. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q14.	The press release says “The highest responsive bidder for each license will win the right to submit an application for the license to the PLCB within 6 months of auction award”.  

Q14-a.  Does that mean the winning bidder must be identical to the name of the applicant for transfer? For instance, if the winning bid is submitted by an individual, can that individual form an entity (LLC or corporation) and submit the transfer application in the name of that new entity?
			
		A14-a.	   The winner of a license auction may assign its rights to another individual or entity, including a corporate entity, which may then file the transfer application.  For purposes of the bid surety, the winning individual or entity retains legal responsibility for all elements of the auction, including but not limited to the prohibitions against application by an individual or entity having an interlocking business interest or by an individual or entity that is not of good repute.  The bid surety will be forfeited if the selected bidder or its assignee has an interlocking business interest or is not of good repute.  Furthermore, the winning individual retains legal responsibility for the timeliness of the filing of the transfer application by the assignee, such that the bid surety will be forfeited if the assignee fails to timely file. 

Q14-b.  Can a winning bidder assign or sell his/her bid to another unrelated party?  For instance, the winning bidder is a broker, or speculator, for $150,000.  This bidder then sells the bid and right to file a transfer (like with a Sheriff’s Sale) to another party for $175,000, and that party then files the transfer with the PLCB.
			
A14-b.	 Yes, with the conditions set forth in A14-a above. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q15.	How long after one of these licenses is acquired must it be put into use? 

A15.  A transfer application must be filed within six months of the date of the Notice of Selection, after which the usual licensing investigation will commence.  Once a license application is approved by the Board, a licensee commences operations.  An exception to this timeline is if the transfer application is submitted on a “prior approval” basis, in which case the licensee will have six months to become operational.  A license approved on a “prior approval” basis may not be transferred until it actually operates. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q16.	If someone is the winning bidder to an “Auction License” may he then assign the right to apply for transfer of the license, for example:

Q16-A.  To an entity in which he is the sole principal?
			
			A16-A.	   Yes. 

Q16-B.  To an entity in which he is one of a group of other principals?
			
A16-B.	  Yes. 

Q16-C. To a person or entity in which he has no ownership interest (i.e., freely assignable)?
			
		A16-C.	  Yes. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q17.	If the winning bidder is intending to file for an Intermunicipal Transfer to a location outside the municipality for which the license was issued, yet is then denied the municipal approval or is unable to obtain the municipal approval prior to the six month deadline to file for the transfer with the PLCB:

Q17-a.  May an extension of the six month period for filing with the PLCB be granted by the PLCB for the winning bidder to obtain a municipal transfer or is the six month period absolute?
			
			A17-a.	   The transfer period is not extendable.  

Q17-b.  Are there any provisions to allow the winning bidder to submit the PLCB transfer application without submitting a Municipal Approval along with the application under such circumstances until the Municipal Approval is obtained or otherwise?
			
A17-b.	  Only if the license is to be used in its originating municipality.  Otherwise, municipal approval must be presented along with the transfer application, unless the receiving municipality is below the municipal quota.  See also A9-c. 

Q17-c. The IFB Invitation #260317, on page 6 Legal Requirements, indicates the bid surety (the $5,000.00) will be forfeited if a transfer application is not filed with PLCB timely; however it does not state whether there will be any refund to the winning bidder of the balance of the bid paid on the winning bid.  Under the applicable 14 day window for payment of the bid following winning, such payment would have already been paid to the PLCB long before the end of the six month PLCB application filing deadline.   Will that, as opposed to the bid surety, be refundable if the transfer application is not filed in six months?
			
	A17-c.	 Yes, since the bid amounts are held in escrow per Act 39 until a transfer application is approved, in the event there is no such approval, the bid amount will be refunded.  The bid surety, however, will be forfeited.  

Please also note that the bid amount to be paid within fourteen days of the date of the Notice of Selection is the full bid amount, and is not to be reduced by the amount of the bid surety.  For example, if the winning bid amount is $100,000.00, then the full $100,000.00 is due and payable.  The bid surety is a wholly separate payment.  In this example, if ultimately the transfer application is not timely filed, the selected bidder would be refunded $100,000.00 bid amount, but would forfeit the $5,000.00 bid surety. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q18.	Is the bid deposit returned if you are not the winning bid? 

A18.  Yes, the bid surety will be refunded to the non-selected bidder; however, in the event the winning bidder for a license fails to remit full payment of the bid amount within fourteen days of the Notice of Selection, then that Notice of Selection will be rescinded and a Notice of Selection will be awarded to the second highest qualified bidder.  The IFB requires all elements of each bid to remain valid and binding on the bidder for at least 240 days.  Therefore, the PLCB may hold bid sureties for non-selected bidders for a time sufficient to ensure that the requirements of the IFB have been met. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q19.	We represent numerous licensees that are interested in entering the license auction process. 

Under Act 39 of 2016, Section 470.3(I) states that "The Board shall only approve the transfer of a license under this section to a municipality, other than the municipality it last operated in, upon approval of the governing body of the municipality.  However, on the PLCB website's Auction FAQ page (http://www.lcb.state.pa.us/cons/groups/externalaffairs/documents/form/003509.pdf), the answer to Question 18, regarding the transfer of the auctioned licenses, states that "the auctioned license, once awarded, is treated just as any other application for transfer would be treated.  Thus it must remain in the county in which it was issued, and if the applicant wishes to transfer it to a different municipality in that county, the regular transfer statutes and regulations on intermunicipal transfers would apply."
   
The language from Act 39 indicates that a winning bidder would not be able to operate the auctioned license in the same municipality that it last operated, but the FAQ issued by the PLCB seems to allow the winning bidder to operate the auctioned license in the municipality it originated from. 

As a result, we have a few questions:

Q19-a.  Can you please clarify the above-referenced inconsistencies? 
			
		A19-a.	   Your interpretation of the law is incorrect as stated.  The license may be used in its originating municipality.  Act 39 directs that the PLCB may only approve an intermunicipal transfer of a license won at auction if the transfer is first approved by the governing body of the receiving municipality.  No such approval is required for transfers within the originating municipality.  

Q19-b.  For Philadelphia licenses, how can licenses be available for auction if transfers can only be to a municipality “other than the municipality it last operated in”?
			
	A19-b.	   Any “Philadelphia license” bought at this auction may be used in the City and the County of Philadelphia. 

Q19-c. Under Act 39 of 2016, Section 470.3(I) states that the auctioned licenses shall be "subject to the same restrictions as any other transfer application, including any conditional licensing agreements and county quota restrictions under Section 461."  However, 47 P.S. § 4-404 states that additional restrictions, such as a conditional licensing agreement, “shall be binding on subsequent holders of the license until the license is transferred to a new location or until the board enters into a subsequent agreement removing those restrictions.”  The question is, if the language of Act 39 is correct and the awarded auction licenses must be moved from the municipality, will it be subject to a conditional licensing agreement that was previously in place on the license? 

		A19-c.   As set forth above, licenses need not be moved from their originating municipality.  In addition, no licenses scheduled for this auction are encumbered with a conditional licensing agreement.  See also A7 above. 

Q19-d.  As an addition to the previous question, with regard to being subject to the county quota restrictions, the PLCB FAQ sheet referenced above, in the answer to Question 18, states that the license must remain in the County.  If the County is already over quota (as all counties are in the Commonwealth), how will the PLCB be able to auction these licenses above and beyond that quota if they are still subject to the quota under Section 470.3(I)? 

A19-d.  Auctioned licenses are an exception to the quota.  See also A1 above. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q20.	Can non-restaurant owners bid on an R license?  

A20.     Except as to those precluded by virtue of having a prohibited interlocking business interest or being of ill repute, there are no restrictions on who may bid for a license in this IFB.  Winning bidders are permitted to assign rights to file a transfer application; however, there are qualification requirements that must be met by the assignee that is applying for the transfer.  See also A14 above. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q21.	If there are two R licenses available, can one entity bid and win both? 

A21.  Yes.  Each license being auctioned has been assigned a unique auction number, and bidders may bid on one or more licenses as long as they submit separate bid packages for each license.  Each PLCB Bid Sheet is specific to a particular license.  The PLCB will provisionally award each license auctioned to the qualified bidder submitting the responsive bid having the highest bid amount.  Such awards will be made via formal Notice of Selection.  No awards will be made at the bid openings.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q22.	This auction in Bucks County is that going for $25,000 or is that the starting bid only?  How high do these licenses usually go up to at an auction like this?  Just curious.

A22.  	No bid lower than $25,000 will be accepted.  This is the first auction of this kind so there is no historical data to answer the question in regards to bid pricing submittals.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q23.	Do we need representation to be part of the bid process (i.e., lawyer)?

A23.    No, legal representation or any other type of representation is not a requirement for submitting a bid; however, it is always highly recommended that you seek your own legal counsel.  See A2 above regarding bid submission requirements.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q24.	Does the top four bids win the four licenses or are they being auctioned on sealed bids as separate items?  

A24.  	Each license being auctioned has a unique auction number and bids must be submitted separately using the appropriate PLCB Bid Sheet for each such license. The PLCB will provisionally award each license auctioned to the qualified bidder submitting the responsive bid having the highest bid amount.  Such awards will be made via formal Notice of Selection.  No awards will be made at the bid opening.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q25.	Is the $5,000 bid surety applicable to the purchase price if the successful bidder?

A25.  	No.  The purpose of the bid surety is to demonstrate the bidder’s intent to follow through with his/her bid.  It also serves as liquidated damages to the PLCB if the winning bidder fails to comply with the bid requirements.  To be clear, the bid amount due following a Notice of Selection must be for the full bid amount and must not be reduced by the amount of the bid surety. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q26.	Does the entity/person who bids on the license need to be the entity/person who becomes the licensee?  

A26.    No.  The right to file a transfer application may be assigned by the selected bidder to another qualified individual or entity; however, the selected bidder retains all obligations for timely payment of the bid amount and for timely filing of the transfer application.  See also A6, A10 and A14 above. 

Q26-a.  Can a winning bid be assigned to an entity owned by the bidder?
	
		A26-a.	   Yes, as long as the entity is qualified to apply for license transfer. See also A26 above. 

Q26-b. Can the winning bid be assigned by the winning bidder to an unrelated third party?
			
A26-b.	   Yes, as long as the entity is qualified to apply for license transfer.
See also A26 above.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q27.	What is the time frame the license can be taken out of safekeeping?
 
A27.  The license is not currently in safekeeping.  A transfer application must be filed by the winning bidder or its assignee within six months of the date of the Notice of Selection. See also A15 above.  
____________________________________________________________________________


Q28.   Can I buy the bid as an individual person or does it have to be under a corporation?
 
A28.  Bidders may be individuals or entities and no particular corporate structure is required for purposes of bidding.  See also A26 above.  
____________________________________________________________________________


Q29.   Bid Instructions for IFB #260317 contains a list of the 40 licenses to be auctioned, each with each license identified by a license auction number, a county, a municipality, and an expired license number.  To my knowledge there is no ability to access the expired license numbers from the PLCB website.  As such how do I find out information as the Licensee/License Number in which to do due diligence prior to bidding?
 
A29.   See A10, A13, and A19-c above.  
____________________________________________________________________________

Q30.   If we are interested in bidding on one of the expired restaurant liquor licenses, can that license be used anywhere in that county or is it necessary to use it in the municipality in which it was issued initially?  
 
A30.  The auctioned license, once awarded, is treated just as any other application for transfer would be treated.  Thus, it must remain in the county in which it was issued, and if the applicant wishes to transfer it to a different municipality in that county, the regular transfer statutes and regulations on intermunicipal transfers would apply.  See also A19 above. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q31.   We’re trying to figure out if there’s any preferential treatment given to hometown, or even PA-based, bidders versus large conglomerates from outside the state and sometimes the country?

A31.   No.  Bids are sealed and will be opened publicly.  Except as to those precluded from participation by virtue of having a prohibited interlocking business interest or being of ill repute, the only criteria for participating in the auction as a bidder is the timely submission of a bid package for each license sought, including the appropriate signed PLCB Bid Sheet for each license and proper bid surety for each license.  The highest qualified bidder for each license will receive a Notice of Selection and all results will be publicly posted.  See also A20 above. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q32.   Would one be able to resell the license at any time, or will one only be able to resell after a certain period of time in order to prevent speculators from jumping in?
 
A32.  There are no time limits on the ability of a license holder to resell a license once a transfer application is approved; however, please note that any such “sale” only grants the right to file a transfer application, which must then be investigated and approved by the Board as in the normal course.  Note also that a selected bidder may assign its right to apply for a transfer of the awarded license to another eligible individual or entity.  See also A14-a. 
 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q33.   If I’m not the highest bidder and don’t win the bid, do I get all of my money back?  

A33.  See A18 above.  
 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q34.  Can you tell me in what municipalities the licenses coming up for auction are located?

A34.  Municipalities and counties for each license number are contained on the Licenses to Be Auctioned which is page 2 of IFB #260317.  The municipalities are also included on each Attachment A - IFB #260317 PLCB Bid Sheet for each License Auction number.
 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q35.   Are you able to win an auction and put the license in safekeeping?

A35.  See A9 and A15 above.


____________________________________________________________________________

Q36.   If you are not able to proceed applying for the license within 6 months of winning an auction, does the bidder get refunded the money spent?  Is there an extension and fee?  If so, how long is the extension?
 
A36.  As set forth in the IFB, if a selected bidder or its assignee does not file a transfer application within six months of the date of the Notice of Selection, the Notice of Selection will be rescinded, the bid surety will be forfeited, and the next highest qualified bidder will be selected.  There are no extensions to the filing deadline.  See also A17-a and A17-c above. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q37.   When will the bidders who do not secure the winning bid be told the amount of the winning bid?  It is public information, correct?
 
A37.   Bids will be opened in a public meeting scheduled to begin at 9:00 a.m. EDT on Monday, October 31, 2016 at the Commonwealth Keystone Building, PUC Hearing Room #1, 400 North Street, Harrisburg, PA.  Bidder names and bid amounts for each license being auctioned will be publicly screened in the Hearing Room as bids are opened.  No bids will be awarded at the bid opening; rather, as set forth in the IFB, provisional awards will be made to the highest qualified bidder for each license via a Notice of Selection from the Issuing Officer.  Once all bids have been provisionally awarded in this manner, full results of the IFB will be posted within two business days on the DGS website at http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/Solicitations.aspx?SID=260317.

____________________________________________________________________________

Q38.   If we submit a bid for multiple licenses in one county, does that amount carry over to the other three licenses?  For example, we bid an amount for one of the licenses, but someone bids a higher amount for that same license.  Will the amount we bid on that license be carried over to the next license or will you have to submit 4 entries for the same amount?  
 
A38.   Each license being auctioned has been assigned a unique auction number, and bidders may bid on one or more licenses as long as they submit separate bid packages for each license.  Each PLCB Bid Sheet is specific to a particular license.  The PLCB will provisionally award each license auctioned to the qualified bidder submitting the responsive bid having the highest bid amount for each license.  Bids may not be conditioned in any way.  Each bid package must include the required bid surety and the relevant PLCB Bid Sheet, properly signed and sealed, for each specific license.  Failure to comply with the requirements of the IFB will render a bid non-responsive. 
.
____________________________________________________________________________

Q39.   I was inquiring if I need to register as a bidder prior to submitting an offer?  

A39.  If you are referring to registering as a supplier through the Pennsylvania Supplier Portal, the answer is no, that is not a requirement of this IFB.  See also A2 above regarding bid submission requirements.  

____________________________________________________________________________

Q40.   Can I submit more than one bid on a single license?
 
A40.  Yes; however, all bids will be opened for each license being auctioned and only the highest bid by each bidder will be considered.  For example, if a bidder submits two or more bids on one license, all bids by that bidder for that license that are lower than the highest bid by that bidder for that license are immediately rendered null and void.  Therefore, there is no practical advantage in submitting multiple bids on one license.  
____________________________________________________________________________

Q41.   If I submit more than one bid for a single license and my bids are the highest and the second highest for that license, which amount do I have to pay?
 
A41.   If selected, a winning bidder must remit the full amount of the highest bid within fourteen days of the date of the Notice of Selection.  All bids by a bidder for a license that are lower than the highest bid by that bidder for that license are immediately rendered null and void.  See also A40 above. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q42.   If my bid is the highest, do I have to pay my full bid amount or do I only have to pay $1.00 more than the amount bid by the second highest bidder?
 
A42.  Selected bidders must pay their full bid amount with no conditions, offsets or other reductions.    

____________________________________________________________________________

Q43.   Are any of the licenses being auctioned in this IFB#260317 subject to any unpaid fines, unserved suspensions, liens and/or judgments accrued by the previous license holder?
 
A43.   No.  See also A7 above. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q44.   If I am the winning bidder on a license but fail to pay the bid amount when due or to file the transfer application within six months, am I precluded from participating in any other license auctions?
 
A44.  No.  

____________________________________________________________________________

Q45.   If I am the winning bidder on two or more different licenses, can I decide to drop my bid for any or all of the licenses?
 
A45.    As set forth in the IFB, bids may not be conditioned in any manner and bids must remain valid for at least 240 days.  Once selected, a bidder’s failure to proceed will result in rescission of the Notice of Selection and forfeiture of the bid surety.   See also A6 above. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q46.   Are interlocking business interests and ill repute the only reasons that the PLCB will reject a transfer application submitted for an auctioned license?
 
A46.     No.  As set forth in Act 39, “the application shall be processed in the same manner as any other transfer application and shall be subject to the same restrictions as any other transfer application.”  If a transfer application is ultimately refused, a new transfer application must be submitted by the selected bidder or its assignee within 30 days of the final refusal decision or else the license reverts to the PLCB for future auction.  If such a second transfer application is also refused, the license reverts to the PLCB for future auction.   

____________________________________________________________________________

Q47.   If I am selected for a license and timely pay my full bid amount, but my application is rejected for reasons other than interlocking business interests or ill repute, will I get my $5000 bid surety back?
 
A47.  Yes, as long as all requirements of the IFB have been met.  
____________________________________________________________________________

Q48.   If I am notified by the Issuing Officer that I am tied with another bidder or bidders for the highest bid on a license, am I required to submit a higher bid amount or can I drop out?
 
A48.    As set forth in the IFB, tied bidders will have the option to submit one best and final offer (“BAFO”).  As bids must be unconditioned and must be valid for at least 240 days, a bidder cannot “drop out.”  If a tied bidder elects not to submit a higher bid in response to the BAFO opportunity, then that bidder’s bid amount will remain as originally submitted.  

____________________________________________________________________________

Q49.   If the winning bidder fails to pay the bid amount within two weeks of the Notice of Selection and I am the second highest qualified bidder for that license, am I required to honor my bid or can I drop out?
 
A49.   As set forth in the IFB, bids may not be conditioned and must remain valid for at least 240 days.  Bidders may not “drop out” after the deadline for withdrawing bids as set forth in the IFB (10:00 a.m. EDT on Thursday, October 27, 2016).  Failure to honor a bid will result in rescission of any bid selection and forfeiture of the bid surety. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q50.   What happens if both the highest bidder and the second highest bidder fail to pay the bid amount—does it go to the third highest bidder or is the license put back in the inventory of expired licenses to be auctioned later?
 
A50.   Per Act 39, the license will be put back into the inventory of expired licenses to be auctioned later and both bidders will forfeit their bid surety. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q51.   What happens to a bid submittal if the filing instructions are not followed, such as not submitting in a properly labeled envelope?
 
A51.   Please see A52 below regarding mandatory bid requirements.  

____________________________________________________________________________

Q52.  What are the mandatory bid requirements that, if not followed, will result in disqualification of a bid?
 
A52.    A bid must be timely received, properly signed, and must contain the appropriate PLCB Bid Sheet for the license at issue along with $5,000.00 bid surety. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q53.   How do you determine whether a bid that is mailed is “timely received” ---is it based on the postmark date?
 
A53.    As set forth in the IFB, bids must be in the possession of the Issuing Officer no later than 12:00 p.m. EDT (“Noon”) on Thursday, October 27, 2016.  The postmark date is irrelevant, as is the date of “posting” to the U.S. Postal Service or any other mail carrier or delivery service.  To be clear, the legal principle of “the mailbox rule” is not applicable to this IFB.  Bidders are encouraged to submit bids in a manner and on a timeline that will ensure receipt by the Issuing Officer on or before the deadline.  
____________________________________________________________________________

Q54.   If I am bidding on more than one license, can I submit copies of one bid bond for $5000 in each envelope?
 
A54.   No.  Each bid package must include the relevant PLCB Bid Sheet and $5,000.00 bid surety that is specific to that license being auctioned.  Therefore, if a bidder is bidding on three licenses, then there must be three bid packages, each of which contains an original certified check, cashier’s check or bid bond.  Failure to include the bid surety will result in rejection of the bid. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q55.   If I am the highest bidder, do I have to pay the full amount of my bid or do I deduct the $5000 I have already submitted as bid surety?
 
A55.   The selected bidder must submit the full amount of the bid.  See also A17-c and A25 above. 

____________________________________________________________________________

Q56.   Will the licenses purchased at auction be exempt from the municipal quota system, such that they can be transferred to another municipality in the same county without the need for an intermunicipal transfer hearing?

A56.	The application for transfer of an auctioned license, once awarded, is treated as any other application for transfer would be treated.  Thus, it must remain in the county in which it was issued. If the applicant wishes to transfer it to a different municipality within that county, the regular transfer statutes and regulations on intermunicipal transfers would apply, as described in Legal Specifications and Requirements, paragraph six of the IFB.  See also A9-b and A9-c above.

____________________________________________________________________________

Q57.   Will there be an opportunity to ask questions at the bid opening?
 
A57.   No.  The purpose of the bid opening is solely to publicly open each bid, to verify what is contained in each envelope, and to record bids received.  The question period closed at noon on Tuesday, September 27, 2016 and the bid opening is not an interactive event. 
____________________________________________________________________________

Q58.   What happens at a bid opening?
 
A58.   Bids will have been presorted by license auction number and the bid tabulation sheet will have been prepopulated with the names of the bidders.  This information will be gleaned from the labeling information required per the IFB (IFB #260317, license auction number, and name of bidding individual or entity).  The bid tabulation sheet will be projected so that all in attendance may see it.   Attendance at the bid opening is not required. 

	All bids received for License #1 will be opened in alphabetical order.  The Issuing Officer and her designee will open each envelope, verify that the PLCB Bid Sheet and the requisite bid surety is contained therein, and then the Issuing Officer will enter the bid amount into the bid tabulation sheet.  Any bid packages having illegible or unclear labeling will be opened after all other bids for that license have been opened, or after all bids for all licenses have been opened, as the case may be. 

	The bid tabulation sheet will be sorted from highest to lowest for each license once all bids for that license have been opened.  This will be also be projected so that all in attendance may see it.  Bids are NOT validated at the bid opening, licenses are NOT awarded at the bid opening, and questions are NOT entertained from the audience at the bid opening.  

	If necessary, the bid opening may be suspended for meal breaks or to continue on a second day.  Please see the IFB for details.   After bids are validated and Notices of Selection are sent to winning bidders, which is expected to be within a few days of the end of the bid opening, a public listing of the auction results will be posted on the PLCB’s website and also on the IFB website at (http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/Solicitations.aspx?SID=260317)

____________________________________________________________________________

Q59.   May a selected bidder transfer an expired liquor license, successfully acquired at auction, into safekeeping with the Board, or must the license be transferred within six months of acquisition and immediately placed into service?  

A59.   See A9, A15, and A35 above. 
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